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MAGICIAN AT A GLANCE

Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited (the "Company”) is a well-
established manufacturer and distributor of a most comprehensive range
of household and related specialty products, selling such products as
well as providing OEM and ODM services to wholesalers and retailers in
the whole world. Magiciam has its head office in Hong Kong and production
facilities in Shenzhen, the People's Republic of China (the "PRC") On
top of that, Magician possesses an efficient sales and distribution network
in 29 major cities in Mainland China, spanning over a vast region from
Guangzhou in southern China to Harbin in the north. It has also recently
expanded into cities in China's western region, including Yunnan.

With value-added products and services, effective brand name
promotions and well-established R&D

teams, Magiciam occupies a leading
position among housewares manufacturing e —
industries worldwide. .

Magician’s products also have their
own distinctive brand names, including the
widely-recognized “NICOLE design”, which
are available in more than 3,000 sales
outlets throughout the PRC.

\ in order to constantly maintain a
\! competitive edge, Magiciam actively
e Mo provides a variety of value-added products
2 1 to its customers. in addition to being an

OEM partner to world-renowned and
leading housewares providers, wholesalers,
large retail markets and specialty sales
outlets, the Company and its subsidiaries :
(the “Group”) have also taken up ODM ‘ i 4
roles, integrating innovative design and ‘
function into its products. Over time, this ‘!

has afforded Magician the opportunity -~
to serve an increasingly large segment of L: =y )
the worldwide market. roby g ' s ¢ -l TR

Magician has carried on its business e 2ochd //'l“
since the early seventies, but such long : ) G
history and vintage origin have not '
prevented it from evolving and keeping f
pace with the latest technological
advances. In fact, Magician is constantly
focusing on state-of-the-art technology and
modern trends, and has always spared no
efforts in up-grading its products both in L

design and function throughout its

operations. Magiciam has employed and will continue to employ
advanced information technologies in order to increase production
efficiency, and in turn, to enhance profits without compromising in quality.
Employment of advanced information technologies will also strenghthen
centralized production control in its factories .

With its well-planned and well-defined development strategies,
meticulously supervised manufacturing operations, a vast and efficient
sales network, as well as prudent management and financial control,
Magician is effectively paving its way to increasing success, by taking
advantage of new and exciting opportunities surrounding it. Adding to
these factors the extraordinary diligence and dedication of the
management team and staff, Magiciam will undoubtedly have tremendous
potential for growth, benefiting from each and every one of those
opportunities that come its way, and will be able to position itself for
continued growth for many years to come.




CORPORATE INFORMATION

=t \

=
|

L N A - -]

(BOARD OF DIRECTORS)

Executive Directors
Mr KONG Yick Ming (Chairman)
Mr KU Ling Yu, John

Non-Executive Directors
Mr WONG Kwong Chi

Mr KU Yee Hong, Derek
Mr KEUNG Sau Tim

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr TSUI Sing Kee, Rawdon

Mr CHEUNG Sun Lung
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(COMPANY SECRETARY)
Mr KWONG Lin Pik, Alvin
REGISTERED ADDRESS)

Clarendon House, Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

[HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS,
Flat E-H, 24th Floor, Phase 2, Superluck industrial Centre,
57 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong

(SECURITIES CODES,
Hong Kong Stock Code: 526
American Depositary Receipt, Programme — Level 1 ,Trading Symbol: MGCIY

T T
AUDITORS,

Arthur Andersen & Co

Certified Public Accountants,

21st Floor, Edinburgh Tower,

The Landmark, 15 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS;
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Citibank N.A.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
ABN.AMRO Bank

(PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE)

Butterfield Corporate Services Limited
Rosebank Centre, 14 Bermudiana Road ,Pembroke, Bermuda

TRANSFER QFFICE

Secretaries Limited
5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

{EHI@N@ KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AN@}

(INVESTOR RELATIONS ADVISOR)
PR Concepts Company Limited
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS)

Mr KONG Yick Ming, aged 50, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He is responsible for corporate policy making,
strategic planning, marketing and sales of the Group. Mr Kong has over
27 years' experience in the manufacture and sale of plastic and metal
general houseware, kitchen ware, gift items, bathroom accessories and
related household accessories. Mr Kong has been granted Young
Industrialist Awards of Hongkong in 1996 and has been the honorary
secretary of The Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council Limited for 1997
- 1998, He has also been the president of The Rotary Club of Tsuen
Wan for 1895 - 1996 and is also the part-time vice president of The Xian
industries & Commerce Association for 2002. Mr Kong has been awarded
Associateship by the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong
Industries in 2002.

Mr KU Ling Yu, John, aged 54, is a solicitor and notary public,
practising in Hong Kong since 1975. He was appointed Non-executive
Director of the Company in June 2000 and Executive Director of the
Company in September of the same year.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS |

Mr WONG Kwong Chi, aged 50, is an executive vice president and a
director of Transpac Capital Limited, a company which is principally engaged
in private equity investment in Mainland China and South East Asia. Mr
Wong has over 20 years' experience in banking, manufacturing and direct
investment industry. He holds a bachelor degree in science and a master
degree in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr Wong was the chairman of the Hong Kong Venture Capital
Association and the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Electronic Industries
Association. He is a committee member of the Hong Kong Young
tndustrialists Council Limited. He holds directorship in a number of
private and public companies. He has been appointed Non-executive
Director of the Company in 2000,

Mr KU Yee Hong, Derek, aged 24, holds a degree of Bachelor of
Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong. He was appointed
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2000.

Mr TSUI Sing Kee, Rawdon, aged 58, Mr Tsui holds a master degree
of business administration from the University of East Asia. He has been
appointed Non-executive Director of the Company in 2000.

Mr CHEUNG Sun Lung, aged 44, graduated from Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He has been appointed Non-executive Director of the
Company in 2000.

Mr NG Wai Lung, aged 51, Mr Ng has over 22 years of experience in
manufacturing and marketing electronic products. He holds an ordinary
diploma in industrial supervision and is a member of the Institute for
Supervision and Management in United Kingdom. He holds directorship
in a number of private companies and was formerly appointed as non-
executive director of another listed company. He has been appointed
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2000.

Mr KEUNG Sau Tim, aged 49, graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic.
He has been appointed Non-executive Director of the Company in 2000.
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(SENIOR MANAGEMENT)

Mr KWONG Lin Pik, Alvin, aged 46, is the chief
financial officer, chief operating officer and company
secretary of the Group. He joined the Group in 2000
and is responsible for the overall supervision of finance
and accounting function, company secretarial function
and the manufacturing operations of the Group. Mr
Kwong has 10 years' experience in finance and
accounting in both USA and Hong Kong. He holds a
master degree of business administration from the San
Francisco State University of USA. He is a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants and an associate member of Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. He is also a certified
management accountant, a certified financial
management, a certified internal auditor, a certified
computing professional and a certified information
systems auditor.

Mr NG Fun Hung, aged 29, is the financial controller
of the Group. He joined the Group in 2002 and is
responsible for the routine financial operations of the
Group. Mr Ng has over 6 years' experience in auditing,
finance and taxation with an international accounting
firm in Hong Kong. He holds a bachelor degree of
business administration in accounting from the Hong
Kong Baptist University and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of both the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants and Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Ms SIN Mei Chun, Nadia, aged 44, is the general
manager of human resources and public relations of
the Group. She joined the Group in 1994 and is
responsible for the human resources, public relations
and administration functions of the Group. Ms Sin has
over 21 years' experience in personnel and
administration management. She holds a master degree
of business administration from the Open University of
Hong Kong and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Human Resource Management.

Mr FUNG Shea Wang, aged 41, is the senior
information technology manager of the Group. He
joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for the
information technolagy function of the Group. Mr Fung
has over 18 years' experience in developing information
technology solutions, implementation of information
systems and software development. He holds a
bachelor degree of commerce (management and
marketing) from the Curtin University of Technology
and a master degree of business administration from
the Open University of Hong Kong. He is a full member
of the Internet Professionals Association, a full member
of the Hong Kong Management Association, a full
member of the Hong Kong Computer Society and a

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. He
is also a certified professional marketer of the Hong
Kong Institute of Marketing.

Mr WONG Chi Kwong, aged 37, is the executive
general manager of market development of Nicole
(China) Company Limited. He joined the Group in
1992 and is responsible for brand management, product
development and marketing functions in PRC market.
Mr Wong has over 14 years' experience in marketing
and sales management.

Mr NG Man Chung, aged 43, is a plant manager of
Magicgrand Development Limited. He joined the Group
in 1988 and is respansible for the overall supervision
of production operation in plastic factory and metal
factory. Mr Ng has over 27 years' experience in plastics
manufacturing and production management.

Ms LI Yuen Yee, aged 42, is the customer services
manager of Magicgrand Development Limited. She
joined the Group in 1979 and is responsible for
supervising shipping and production planning of the
Group. Ms Li has over 22 years' experience in export
trading manufacturing of plastic and metal houseware
and kitchen ware, purchasing, shipping, production
planning and sales.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(TURNOVER DISTRIBUTION BY PRODUCT)
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LETTER TO-SHAREHOLDERS &
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dear Shareholders,

I 'am glad to report that there are obvious signs of
the tide turning, such that | can say with reasonable
confidence that we may expect to see the approach of
a better era in our Company.

As we began to forge our way into the 21st century,
our journey quickly became riddled with unprecedented
challenges that were equally affecting people and
businesses worldwide. General phenomena of the Hong
Kong economy at the beginning of the period under
review were ostensibly marked by a global recession
that had seen consumer confidence plummeting to
record lows. The September 11 terrorist attacks dealt
an additional hard and severe blow. As shock waves in
the aftermath of the attacks continued to rip through
economic and political circles, the world in particular
the United States was more determined than ever to
fight terrorism and restore good order. Spirits were high,
which helped to arouse an otherwise depressed
economic climate. 1t was timely for China to be admitted
to the World Trade Organization at this crucial time. In
the midst of the turbulence, Magician has successfully
weathered the slump, the perks and the uncertainties,
and remained at the forefront of the industry.

In the light of the aforesaid, | am both proud and
delighted to be able to report favourably to you and
present in this report details of our performance in the
past year.

For the year ended 31st March, 2002, we recorded
a turnover of HK$434.7 million, an increase of 7%
over last year's HK$404.5 million. Net profit attributable
to shareholders was HK$15.7 million, representing an
increase of 175% over HK$5.7 million. Basic earnings
per share wes HK1.81 cents (2001: HK1.12 cents).

With the Group still on its recad to recovery, the
board of directors has resolved not to recommend
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31st March,
2002.
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The Road toc Recovery

| realize that the Group's
present financial state is of the
utmost concern for most of our
shareholders. Therefore, | would
like to begin by describing the
significant progresses that we have
made in this respect in the course
of the year under review. As | have
reported to you last year, the
Group entered into a 5-year self-
rescue debt restructuring program
in December 2000. Since then,
the Group has effected all due
repayments on schedule, thus
making significant headway in
reducing its overall debts. During
the year, the two bank loan
installments agreed to be payable
bi-annually were both paid on
time, successfully reducing the
Group’s 5-year term loan to
HK$87.6 million, representing a
decrease of 20% from last year's
HK$109.6 million. Financing costs
declined alongside with the
interest rate cut of 310% during

the year under review, resulting in

savings of about HK$2.0 million.
Given the stream of operating
profits from steadily improving
businesses in the market, the Group is prudently
confident that it will likely be able to repay the term
loan on time, if not ahead of schedule.

Aftermath of the September 11 incident

For a short spell during the first couple of months
following the September 11 attacks, businesses from
the United States decreased slightly, but orders started
to flow in again immediately after Christmas. In fact,
we are now witnessing the emergence of a trend that
points upwardly with sustainable levels of growth.

According to industry reports, the September 11
incident has unexpectedly resulted in changes in the
mentality and lifestyle of the American people in general.
A great majority of them have since been enthusiastically
embracing the concept of “Back to the Basics”, with a
corresponding shift of attention to their homes. As an
increasing number of people spent more of their time

at home, sales of home-related goods began to flourish.
In 2001, despite an overall economic downturn, sales
of housewares in the United States recorded a modest
increase of 1.2%. The effects became more obvious as
home-related retailers reported stronger sales growth
in the first quarter of 2002. We aim to work even
closer with our U.S. customers 1o reap the benefits of
this shift in consumer focus.

Vaiue-Added Products and Services

In the past, Hong Kong manufacturing enterprises
thrived on the supply of cheap labour in the PRC, which
allowed them an edge over competitive pricing in the
world market. This advantage has now been gradually
weakened by the rise of local PRC manufacturing
companies who are able to offer equally if not more
competitive prices. Today, competitive pricing alone is
not enough to guarantee success. Technological
advances such as the development of the Internet has
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Magician has already established
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an R&D team for the development of
new products many years ago. One of
the direct results of this move, | am
happy to report today, is that we have
been able to launch a program for a
new line of products called the
"Disposable Storage Box" which comes
in 9 variety styles catering to different
markets. Given its huge popularity
since launch in early 2002, we expect
its annual sales volume to reach
72,000,000 sets. The idea of this line
of products is a simple one, but the
products themselves are innovative
both in efficiency and features, and
they can be offered at very affordable
prices, thanks to the joint efforts of

our marketing team and the R&D staff,

We have also aimed at being more
technology-focused in our
so that
hopefully the Group will be able to
prosper on wider profit margins by
tapping the higher-end of the market.
We provide in our budget for a

manufacturing process,

reasonable amount of investments in

enabled multinational firms to easily adopt global
sourcing and direct merchandising policies in order to
reduce their costs, ultimately affecting the profit margins
of manufacturers. Consequently, in order to stay
competitive, Magician has been actively providing its
customers with more value-added products. For
example, instead of being an OEM partner to foreigner
buyers, the Group has also taken up ODM jobs,
providing customers with more innovative designs and
better functioning products.

R&D Focus

To further increase its competitive edge, the
manufacturing industry in Hong Kong would be wise to
spend more of its efforts and resources in research
and development, as well as the employment of a
larger number of skilled professionals. Investments in
these respects will, we believe, be essential for long-
term growth.

development of new products in the
coming financial year.

Brand Name Creation and Promotion

| believe that the creation of recognized brand
names is also very important to the development of a
successful industry. Well-known brand names have
known to become synonymous with value.

Since 1994, the Group has embarked on the
creation and promotion of its brand name "NICOLE
design” in the PRC. As a household product
manufacturer, one of our goals is to have our own
outstanding household brand names which not only
bring customers to our shelves in retail outlets but also
prompt more retailers to join hands with us in selling
our products owing to the strong demands attracted by
our brand names. Our strategy in this respect is shown
in our proactive measures, which included promotional
activities and advertisements in selected locations across
Guangdong Province as well as a few other large cities
in the PRC.




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS &
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

An Award to me with Credit due to Magician
staff at large

in March 2002, | was given an award of
Associateship by the Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries. This Award is meant to give
recognition to the professionalism as well as
achievements of the awardee, and serves to encourage
the awardee to continue making contributions to the
industry that he belongs. For my part, | would reckon
that this Award is due to the extraordinary diligence
and dedication of our staff at Magician, rather than my
own personal achievement. | would fike to take this
opportunity to extend my deepest gratitude for their
commitment and unrelenting efforts.

The Road Ahead

Despite the general shift of manufacturing
operations to the mainland in the last twenty years, |
believe that manufacturing industries will always play a
vital role in the territory’s economic development and
will have the ability to evolve with
the changing times. | believe that the

Lastly, | would like to thank our colleagues and
shareholders who have always stood by the Group over
the past years as we went through some of the most
difficult times in the history of our company. Their
dedication to Magician has put us back on track toward
a brighter and more prosperous future.

Kong Yick Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
24th June, 2002

three areas of developments that |
have high-lighted above, namely,
Value-Added Products and Services,
R&D Focus, and Brand Name Creation
and Promotion, are the three major
critical success factors that will give
further advancement to the Hong
Kong manufacturing industries. It is in
these directions that Magician will
continue to improve itself.

Overall, | believe that the strong
foundation, core competence and
great potential of the Hong Kong
manufacturing industries will continue
to develop and make significant
contributions to enable themselves to
flourish. As | witness the growth of
Magician alongside the manufacturing
industries in the territory as a whole,
| am reminded of our resilience and
strength as a company with a will and
dedication to grow further. | have no
doubt that this strong spirit of ours
will always stay on, for the benefit of
our shareholders as well as the Hong
Kong community as a whole.
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(FINANCIAL KIGHLIGHTS)
General Information

For the year ended 31st March, 2002, the Group
recorded a turnover of HK$434.7 million, representing
an increase of approximately 7% compared with
HK$404.5 million in the previous year. Operating profit
grew by 12 times from HK$2.3 million to HK$28.0
million. Net profit attributable to shareholders was
HK$15.7 million, up 175% from HK$5.7 million during
the same period last year. The Group's basic earnings
per share was HK1.81 cents and diluted earnings per
share was HK1.35 cents.

No principal subsidiaries or associated companies
were acquired or disposed of during the vyear.
Investments held have not been materially changed
from those disclosed in last year's annual report.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
As at 31st March, 2002, the Group's net assets

increased to HK$254.0 million rendering net assets
value per share to HK28 cents. The Group's total assets
at that date were valued at HK$564.4 million, including
cash and bank deposits totaling approximately HK$55.9
million. Its consolidated borrowings amounted to
HK$234.5 million. The Group's debt-to-equity ratio has
been further reduced from 114% at 31st March, 2001
to 92% at 31st March, 2002. Improvements over last
year's figures were primarily due to successful
compliance by the Group of its obligations under the
debt-restructuring program, coupled with a decrease in
bank borrowings and cuts in interest rates.

Capital Structure of the Group

The Group's major borrowings included a 5-year
term loan, which had an outstanding balance of HK$87.6
million after having fulfilled its commitment to repay
the first two installments totaling HK$22.0 million during
the year. The term loan, bearing a floating interest rate,
is scheduled to be repaid completely in another four
years.

Under the Debt

Restructuring Deed dated
10th November, 2000, the
Group also issued two
convertible bonds, one
being coupon
secured convertible bonds
and the other being 4%
coupon secured
convertible bonds, both to
mature at the end of
2005, for discharge of
bank indebtedness to the
extent of HK$174.0
million. After the
completion of a share
offer in early 2001, the
balance for zero coupon
secured convertible bonds
and 4% coupon secured

zero

convertible bonds were
HK$30.0 million and
HK$57.1 million
respectively.

With the exception of
a revolving bank loan of
RMB10.0 million, all of the
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Croup's borrowings are denominated in Hong Keng
dollars. In addition, all the borrowings of the Group are
made on a floating rate basis, except for the 4% coupon
secured convertible bonds which have a fixed interest
rate. As a result of consecutive cuts in market interest
rate and gradual repayment of debts, the Group's
financial burden has been greatly alleviated; and the
finance costs for the year have

dropped by 60%. The Group,

therefore, is in sound financial
position and has sufficient credit
facilities to support its operations.

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31st March, 2002, the
Group’s bank borrowings were
secured by the Group's assets.

Details of Future Pians for
Material Investments or
Capital Assets

The Group does not have any
future plans for material investments.
There will, however, be a reasonable
amount of expenditures in capital
assets, including in particular
additional and new machines and
moulds to cope with production and
market demands. it is expected that
sources of funding will come
primarily from trading profits that the
Group will generate, coupled with
banking facilities that it currently has.

Exposure on Foreign
Exchange Fluctuations

The Group’s monetary assets
and liabilities were principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars,

Chinese Renminbi and U.S. dollars.
Inasmuch as the Hong Kong dollars
is pegged to the U.S. dollars, and
that there has been minimal fluctuation in exchange
rate between Hong Kong dollars and Chinese Renminbi,
the Group's exposure to currency exchange risk was
minimal.

Segment Information

The sales distribution by geographical area has not
changed materially. The Group’s biggest market was
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stitl North America. The sales distribution for North
America, Mainland China, Hong Kong, Europe and others
were 61%, 21%, 10%, 5% and 3% respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

The contingent liabilities of the Group have not
changed materially from those disclosed in last year's
annual report.

Employee Information

As at 31st March, 2002, the Group employed a
workforce of 4,500 employees in its various offices
and factories located in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Competitive remuneration packages were structured,
commensurate with individual responsibilities,
qualification, experience and performance. The Group
provided on-the-job training and safety training programs
to employees.

There was a share option scheme in force but no
share option was granted during the period under
review. No bonus has been paid other than sums, each
equivalent to cne additional month's salary, paid to
individual staff members in December 2001 as part of
agreed salary package, which applied to most of the
employees.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS)
Mainiand China Sales

The PRC's continuous growth has resulted in its
GNP (Gross National Product) increasing by 7.3% in
the year under review, pushing consumer confidence
to a new high. For the Group, its sales to Mainland
China market recorded a turnover of HK$90.4 million,
representing an increase of 8% from last year's HK$83.7
million.

The growth of sales in Mainland China also signifies
the success of our expansion of regional direct sales
offices to large cities such as Zhongshan, Changchun,
Qingdao, Shenyang and Shijiazhuang. Currently, our
direct sales network covers 28 major cities across the
country, which helped in advancing our overall number
of customers in Mainland China by a total number of
over 200 during the year under review.

In order to ensure that prices for goods sold in the
Mainland China market are swiftly and efficiently
collected, we have spent more efforts in order to
achieve closer cooperation with cross-regional outlets

£
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and chain stores, whose sales account for more than
70% of our Mainland China market turnover.

HK Sales

Hong Kong sales picked up momentum during the
year under review, rising to HK$42.3 million, an increase
of 4% compared with the figures of last year. This is
attributable to consumers’ aspiration for quality living
and their ever increasing taste for better home
furnishings, which we have been able to provide.
Despite the economic downturn and an increased
rate, expenditures in home
improvements and housewares have been maintained
steadily.

unemployment

(PRODUCTION)

During the year under review, the Group expanded
its production capacity with two types of additional
production lines, namely, melamine production lines
and iron wire soldering production lines. These additions
will be of vital importance to the Group in its future
growth. The melamine production machines help

upgrade the quality of plastic products for high-end
market; whereas iron wire soldering production facilities
enable the Group to manufacture whole sets of iron
wire products that are new to the Group's product
portfolio.

International Sales

For the year ended 31st
March, 2002, the growth in
international sales has been
particularly encouraging for the
Group, achieving an increase of
8% over last year's HK$280.2
million, reaching an overall
figure of approximately
HK$302.0 million. This was
largely due to the rebound of
the U.S. market, which has led
to a rise in sales of over 5% to
HK$235.4 million, as compared
with only HK$222.6 million in
the previous year. Canada's
market
extraordinarily good, with sales
at a record high of HK$31.8
million, soaring 36% over
HK$23.4 million for the same
period last year. The European
market also fared better during
the year under review with sales
up over 6%, to reach HK$21.3
million from the previous year’s
total of HK$20.0 million.

performance was

On the whole, the
impressive leap in international
sales reflected our successful
marketing and sales strategies
for products catered for various
overseas markets.




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS &
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The combined efforts of our R&D specialists and
design team have resulted in the introduction of
hundreds of new products to the market during the
year under review.

PROSPECTS

In Mainland China market, the Group has opened a
new office in Kunming, the capital city of Yunnan
Province. Yunnan has experienced strong economic
growth in recent years, due largely to advancements
made in tourism and cross-border trade. The Group's
entry into the Xinjiang region, on the other hand, is
expected to boost local sales for HK§1.2 million. On

the whole, the Group anticipates Mainland China sales
to increase by 5% in the coming year.

To reach this goal, the Group plans to restructure
some of its product lines, to conduct focused marketing,
to increase controls on accounts receivable and
inventory, and also to enhance brand names promotion
through television commercials and billboard
advertisements.

The Group anticipates that China's accession to the
World Trade Organization will be advantageous to the
Group’s development. With the influx of big foreign
home improvement stores, small local outlets will

gradually be phased out. The Group expects to
see foreign companies taking up larger market

shares, while upgrading level of service in the
industry as a whole.

The momentum of growth in Hong Kong is
expected to continue as there are signs that
the territory may be able to turn its economic
situation around in the near future.

As for international markets, given the
encouraging results recorded this year, the
Group is also optimistic about overseas sales
performance in the coming year.

To build a better foundation for the Group's
growth in the medium to long term, information
technologies will be employed on a larger scale
throughout different parts of the Group's
operations. The Group has plans to implement
a web-based inventory control system to monitor
sales and payment status. This system will link
up Shenzhen headquarters with all sales offices
in the PRC, with the ability to retrieve sales
information on a daily basis. The information
thus gathered will be useful for the analysis of
material sourcing and purchasing, for production
line management and for inventory control,
thereby increasing production efficacy as a
whole. The enhancement of information
technology will enable the Group to further its
policy of centralized production contro! alongside
the consolidation of its production facilities in
Shatou, Shenzhen.

Looking ahead, the Group is confident that
with an improved operating performance and a
declining financial burden, it will perform well
on its way towards recovery and prosperity.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
the abovenamed company (the “Company”) will be held at Miramar
Ballroom, Penthouse Floor, Hotel Miramar Hong Kong, 118-130 Nathan
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong on 8th August, 2002, at
10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1.

To receive and consider the audited financial statements and
the reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended
31st March, 2002.

To elect directors and to authorise the board of directors to
fix remuneration of directors.

To appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors to
fix their remuneration.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass (with
or without amendments) the following resolutions as ordinary
resolutions:

“THAT

(a) subject to and conditional upon the Listing Committee

of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) granting the listing of and permission
to deal in the shares of the Company to be issued
pursuant to the exercise of any options granted under
the new share option scheme of the Company (the
“New Share Option Scheme™), the rules of which are
contained in the document marked “A" produced to
the meeting and for the purpose of identification signed
by the Chairman, the New Share Option Scheme be
and is hereby approved and adopted and the directors
of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do
all such acts and to enter into all such transactions,
arrangements and agreements as may be necessary
or expedient in order to give full effect to the New
Share Option Scheme including but without limitation:

(1) to administer the New Share Option Scheme under
which options will be granted to participants eligible
under the New Share Option Scheme to subscribe
for shares of the Company;

(i) to modify and/or amend the New Share Option
Scheme from time to time provided that such
modification and/or amendment is effected in
accordance with the provisions of the New Share
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Option Scheme relating to
maodification and/or amendment;

(i) to allot and issue from time to time

such number of shares in the capital
of the Company as may be required
to be allotted and issued pursuant
to the exercise of the options under
the New Share Option Scheme
provided always that the total number
of shares to be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under
the New, Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the share capital of
the Company in issue as at the date
of passing of this resolution
(excluding any options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the
New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes), but the
Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in general meeting for
refreshing the 10% limit; and the
maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the New Share

Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30% of the share capital
of the Company in issue from time
to time;

(iv) to make application at the appropriate

time or times to the Stock Exchange,
and any other stock exchanges upon
which the issued shares of the
Company may for the time being be
listed, for the listing of and
permission to deal in any shares
which may hereafter from time to
time be allotted and issued pursuant
to the exercise of the options granted
under the New Share Option
Scheme; and

(v)to consent to such conditions,

modifications and/or variations as
may be required or imposed by the
relevant authorities in relation to the
New Share Option Scheme;

(b) upon the New Share Option Scheme
becoming unconditional, the existing
share option scheme for the employees
and directors of the Company and its
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subsidiaries which was adopted by the
Company on 20th September, 1995
(“the Existing Share Option Scheme") be
terminated such that no further options
will be granted under the Existing Share
Option Scheme but options (if any)
previously granted and outstanding under
the Existing Share Option Scheme will
remain valid and exercisable in
accordance with the provisions thereof!;

. "THAT

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the

exercise by the directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period (as defined
below) of all the powers of the Company
to purchase its own shares, subject to
and in accordance with the applicable
laws, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares

of the Company to be purchased
pursuant to the approval in paragraph
(a) above shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at
the date of passing of this resolution and

C.

the said approval shall be iimited
accordingly; and

(c) for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from
the passing of this resolution until
whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within
which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required
by the Bye-laws of the Company or
any applicable laws to be held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of the
authority given under this resolution
by ordinary resolution passed by the
Company's shareholders in general
meeting”’;

“THAT

(a) subject to paragraph (¢) below, the

exercise by the directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period (as defined
below) of all the powers of the Company
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to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares in the capital of the Company
and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options which might require the
exercise of such power be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall

authorise the directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period to make or
grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such
power after the end of the Relevant
Period;

(¢) the aggregate nominal amount of share

capital allotted, issued or dealt with or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted, issued or dealt with (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by
the directors of the Company pursuant
to the approval in paragraph (a) above ,
otherwise than pursuant to a Rights Issue
(as defined below) or the exercise of
the subscription rights under the share
option schemes of the Company, shall
not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue as at the date of
passing of this resolution and the said
approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(d) for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from
the passing of this resolution until
whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within
which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required
by the Bye-laws of the Company or
any applicable laws to be held; and

(iithe revocation or variation of the
authority given under this resolution
by ordinary resolution passed by the

Company’s shareholders in general
meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares
open for a period fixed by the directors
of the Company to holders of shares on
the register of members of the Company
on a fixed record date in proportion to
their then holdings of such shares
(subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the
Company may deem necessary or {
expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of any recognised
regulatory body or any stock exchange
in any territory outside Hong Kong)!;

D. “THAT the aggregate nominal amount of
share capital that may be allotted issued or
dealt with or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted, issued or dealt
with by the directors of the Company
pursuant to resolution no. 4C above be and
is hereby extended by the aggregate nominal
amount of shares in the capital of the
Company repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted to the directors
of the Company as mentioned in the above
resolution no. 4B/

By Order of the Board
Kwong, Alvin Lin Pik
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 24th June, 2002

Principal Office:

Flat E-H

24th Floor

Phase 2

Superluck Industrial Centre
57 Sha Tsui Road

Tsuen Wan

New Territories

Hong Kong
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Notes:

(1) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above notice is entitled to appoint
proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy
need not be member of the Company. In order to
be valid, the form of proxy must be deposited at
the Company's principal office in Hong Kong
together with a power of attorney or other authority,
if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of that power of authority, not less than 48
hours before the time for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting.

(2) The register of members of the Company will be
closed from 1st August, 2002 to 8th August, 2002,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfer documents

accompanied by the relevant share certificates must [
be lodged with the Company's branch share \/
registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited, at 5th ﬁ
Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, * 23 l
Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m. on 31st July, \_\g?
2002. AN

(3) The annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31st March, 2002 also containing this notice
together with a circular setting out further
information regarding resolutions no. 4A to 4D
above will be despatched to shareholders as soon
as practicable.
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The directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited financial statements of Magician
industries (Holdings) Limited (hereinafter as the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company
hereinafter as the "Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES,

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the
manufacturing and trading of household products. Other activities and particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2002 are set out on page 33 of the financial
statements.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and recommend that the accumulated losses of
approximately HK$116,413,000 at 31st March, 2002 be carried forward.

'3-VEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's consolidated results for each of the last 5 years and the consolidated assets and
liabilities as at 31st March of each of the respective years is set out on page 68. This summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS)

Details of the movement in fixed assets of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Group's principal subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2002 are set out in Note 34 to the financial
statements.

(ASSOCIATE)

Particulars of the Group's associate as at 31st March, 2002 are set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.

(SHARE CAPITAL)

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.
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(SHARE OPTIONS)

Details of share options of the Company are set
out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

(PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS)

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company's Bye-laws, or the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

'CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds of the Company
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS ‘

[

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of
the Company and the Group are set out in Notes 20
and 22 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED)

Interest expense capitalised in respect of the Group's
construction-in-progress during the year was
approximately HK$61,000 (2001: HK$1,741,000).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st March, 2002, the Company had no
retained profits available for cash distribution and/or
distribution in specie. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the Company’s contributed
surplus of approximately HK$158,398,000 (2001:
HK$158,398,000) is available for distribution, subject
to certain conditions as described in Note 28 to the
financial statements. The Company’s share premium
account of approximately HK$282,049,000 (2001:
HK$282,049,000) as at 31st March, 2002 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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(MAIOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS)

For the year ended 31st March, 2002, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group's five
largest customers represented approximately 40% (2001: 40%) of the Group's total turnover and the sales to
the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 29% (2001: 29%).

The largest supplier for the year ended 31st March, 2002 represented approximately 8% (2001: 11%) of the
Group's total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 25%
(2001: 30%) of the Group's total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year did any of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of the Company who
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital have any interests in the
major customers or suppliers of the Group.

o T T """’w
IDIRECTORS
The directors whe held office during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors:

Kong Yick Ming (Chairman)
Ku Ling Yu, John

Non-executive directors:
Wong Kwong Chi
Ku Yee Hong, Derek
Keung Sau Tim

independent non-executive directors:

Tsui Sing Kee, Rawdon
Cheung Sun Lung
Ng Wai Lung

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Ku Ling Yu, John and Mr. Ku Yee Hong,
Derek, retire from the board at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. Based on the terms defined in the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors, except the Chairman, are subject
to retirement by rotation and offer themselves for re-election.
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[EM@[L&DMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID EM@L@YEES)

Details of the directors’ emoluments and of the five highest paid employees of the Group are set out in Notes
9 and 10 to the financial statements, respectively.

[@HRE@TC@RS” SERVICE @@NTRA@TS}

No director has an unexpired service contract, which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

(DIRECTORS® INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE)

Save as disclosed above, no director had a material beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, was a party
during the year.

(DIRECTORS® INTERESTS IN SECURITIES)

As at 31st March, 2002, the interests of the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the equity or
debt securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities (Disclosure
of Interests) Crdinance (the “SDI Ordinance”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
29 of the SDI Ordinance or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Section 28 of the SDI Ordinance and the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

Number of issued
ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each

Name of director Nature of interests in the Company
Mr. Kong Yick Ming (Note 1) Corporate 286,984,000
Mr. Ku Ling Yu, John (Note 2) Corporate 117,491,777

Note 1: Mr. Kong Yick Ming is deemed to have a beneficial interest in 286,984,000 ordinary shares of the Company
through Concept Developments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is owned by Topwell
International Limited (“Topwell”). Rainbow Pacific Limited (“Rainbow") holds 336 A shares in Topwell,
representing 33.6% of the issued share capital of Topwell. Rainbow is a company wholly-owned by Centre
Trustees (C.l.) Limited, as a trustee for a discretionary trust, the Rainbow Trust, the beneficiaries of which
are the family members of Mr. Kong Yick Ming.

Note 2: Mr. Ku Ling Yu, John is deemed to have a beneficial interest in 117,491,777 ordinary shares of the
Company through Primewell Investment Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Ku Ling Yu, John.

The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company are disclosed below in the section "Share
Option Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive or their associates had any personal, family,
corporate or other interests in the equity or debt securities of the Company, or any of its associated corporations,
as defined in the SDI Ordinance.




(SHARE OPTION SCHEME)

(a) Summary of movements of share option:

All share options lapsed during the year.

(b)  Summary of details of the Scheme:

Participants

Total number of ordinary shares available
for issue and the percentage of the issued
share capital that it represents as at the date
of annual report

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Period within which the securities must be
taken up under an option

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 20th September, 1995, pursuant to which options
may be granted to full-time employees (including executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. As at 31st March, 2002, the particulars in relation to the share
option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”), as required under Rules 17.07 and 17.09 of Chapter 17 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Number of share options
Balance as at Balance as at

Exercise price Ist April,  31st March,
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercise period per share 2001 2002
Executive director
Mr. Kong Yick Ming 7th October, 1396 7th October, 1996 HK$1.68 1,000,000 -

to 6th October, 2001

No share options were granted or cancelled upon termination of employment during the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
directors, their spouses or their children under the age of 18 has any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Full-time employees (including executive
directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries

71,873,344 ordinary shares (8.27% of the
issued share capital)

Shall not exceed 25% of the aggregate number
of ordinary shares issued and issuable under
the Scheme

No option will be exercisable later than 10
years after its date of grant
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Minimum period for which an option : Not applicable
must be held before it can be exercised

Period within which payments/calls/loans : Not applicable
must be made/repaid

Basis of determining the exercise price

Determined by the Board of Directors and will
not be less than 80% of the average closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer or the nominal value
of the shares, whichever is higher.

The remaining life of the share option scheme The Scheme remains in force until 20th

September, 2005

The Stock Exchange has introduced a number of changes to the Listing Rules on share option schemes.
These new rules came into effect on 1st September, 2001. Any option to be granted under the
Scheme shall be subject to the new rules which include, inter alia, the following:

0]

(i)

(i)

()

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of the options granted to each
eligible participant, except directors, chief executive, substantial shareholders and their respective
associates, within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting;

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the directors, but may not be less than
the higher of (1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; and (2) the average closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant;

The total number of the Company's shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval of the schemes. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the schemes will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the 10% limit. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting; and

The total number of the Company's shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. No options may be
granted under any schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

(SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS)

Other than the interests disclosed in the section "Directors’ interests in securities” above, as at 31st March,
2002, the following interests of 10% or more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the
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register of substantial sharehoiders required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 16(1) of the SDI
Ordinance:

Percentage of

Number of issued total issued
Name ordinary shares held ordinary shares
Transpac Nominees Pte Ltd. 213,279,577 24.6%
Concept Developments Limited 286,984,000 ’ 33.0%
Primewell Investment Limited 117,491,777 13.5%

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest in the issued share capital of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance.

(L@UR(C[}{IASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECMRDFDES}

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

(RETIREMENT SCHEME)

Particulars of retirement scheme are set out in Note 23 to the financial statements.

(COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE)

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange throughout the year ended 31st March, 2002,
except that the independent non-executive directors are not appointed for specific terms.

(AUDIT COMMITTEE)

The Company set up an Audit Committee of the Board of Directors on 30th August, 2000. The current
committee members comprise two independent non-executive directors, Mr. Tsui Sing Kee, Rawdon and Mr. Ng
Wai Lung and one non-executive director, Mr. Keung Sau Tim. The Audit Committee has met six times for the year
ended 31st March, 2002 (two of the meetings were with the external auditors) to consider the nature and scope
of audit reviews and financial reporting matters (including the interim and annual financial statements before
recommending them to the Board of Directors for approval).

The financial statements for the financial years ended 31st March, 1939 and 31st March, 2000 were audited
by Messrs. Ernst & Young. The financial statements for the financial years ended 31st March, 2001 and 31st
March, 2002 were audited by Arthur Andersen & Co.

Our auditors, Arthur Andersen & Co, will combine their practice with Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers and a
resolution to appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors to the Company will be proposed at the annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Kong Yick Ming

Chairman
Hong Kong, 24th June, 2002.
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ANDERSEN

Arthur Andersen & Co

21st Floor, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MAGICIAN INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 33 to 67 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

\/ (RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS)

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair
view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report
our opinion to you.

(BASIS OF OPINION)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company's and the Croup’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31st March, 2002 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Arthur Andersen & Co
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24th June, 2002.




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

2002 2001
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
TURNOVER 4,5 434,749 404,490
Cost of sales (296,681) (289,744)
Gross profit 4 138,068 114,746
Other revenue 5 3,483 5,300
Selling and distribution expenses (32,418) (29,306)
Administrative expenses (66,752) (80,191)
Other operating expenses (14,351) (8,247)
(110,038) (112,444)
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7 28,030 2,302
Cain on forgiveness of debt, net 3 - 30,060
Finance costs, net 8 (10,595) (26,175)
Share of profit (loss) of an associate 385 (330)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 17,820 5,857
Taxation 11 (2,130) (102)
PROFIT BEFORE MINCRITY INTERESTS 15,690 5,755
Minority interests - (74)
NET PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 12 15,690 5,681
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic, HK cents 13 1.81 1.12
Diluted, HK cents 14 1.35

0.98

[———

A separate consolidated statement of recognised gains and losses is not presented because there were no

recognised gains or losses other than the net profit for the year.




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March, 2002

2002 2001
Note HK§'000 HK$'000
(Note 35)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and bank balances 13,745 9,597
Restricted bank deposits 32(b) 42,140 41,029
Trade and bills receivable 18 77,034 72,789
inventories 19 52,636 49,022
Prepayments, deposits and other recsivables 6,300 8,825
Total current assets 191,855 181,262
FIXED ASSETS 15 371,029 396,087
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17 1,486 1,042
Total assets 564,370 578,391
' LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term bank loans, secured 53,249 59,164
Current portion of long-term bank loans 20 24,401 26,395
Current portion of finance lease obligations 22 4,050 4,311
Trade payables 21 29,023 21,822
Other payables and accruals 38,407 39,642
Tax payable 3,117 4,011
Total current liabilities 152,247 155,345
LONG-TERM PAYABLE 2,836 2,836
LONG-TERM BANK LOANS 20 65,641 90,072
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 25 87,127 87,127
FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS 22 - 3,903
DEFERRED TAX 24 2,555 834
Total liabilities 310,406 340,117
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 26 86,873 86,873
Reserves 28 167,091 151,401
Tota! shareholders’ equity 253,964 238,274
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 564,370 578,391
Approved by the Board of Directors on 24th June, 2002 and signed on behalf of the Board by:
Kong Yick Ming Ku Ling Yu, John
Chairman Director




BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March, 2002

2002 2001
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and bank balances 71 121
Restricted bank deposits 32(b) 42,140 41,029
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 340 186
Total current assets 42,551 41,336
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 375,225 398,072
Total assets 417,776 439,408
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long-term bank loans 20 22,000 22,000
Other payables and accruals 3,565 3,295
Total current liabilities 25,565 25,295
LONG-TERM PAYABLE 2,836 2,836
LONG-TERM BANK LOANS 20 65,641 87,641
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 25 87,127 87,127
Total liabilities 181,169 202,899
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 26 86,873 86,873
Reserves 28 149,734 149,636
Total shareholders’ equity 236,607 236,509
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 417,776 439,408

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24th June, 2002 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

Kong Yick Ming
Chairman

Ku Ling Yu, John
Director




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

2002 2001
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 29(a) 71,890 41,101
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND
S‘ER\/lCH\JG OF FINANCE
Interest received 560 2,665
interest paid (10,209) (11,016)
Interest element of finance lease payrnents (689) (1,098)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments
and servicing of finance (10,338) (9,449)
TAXATION
Hong Kong profits tax refunded - 1,035
Overseas profits tax paid (1,303) -
Net cash (outflow) inflow from taxation (1,303) 1,035
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of fixed assets (23,146) (23,566)
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 3,549 1,206
Net cash outflow from investing activities (19,597) (22,360)
NET CASH INFLOW BEFORE FINANCING ACTIVITIES 40,652 10,327
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 29(b)
New bank loans - 16,171
Repayment of bank loans (32,683) (675)
Cash outflow in relation to debt restructuring - (23,424)
Capital element of finance lease payments (4,164) (4,009)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (36,847) (11,937)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,805 (1,610)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,597 (142,365)
Reclassification of bank overdrafts and import loans
as a result of debt restructuring 29(b) - 153,572
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 29(b) 343 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 13,745

9,597




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

I. ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of household products.

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of presentation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules").

(b) Adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, the following Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs") issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants:

SSAP 9 (revised) Events after the balance sheet date

SSAP 14 (revised) Leases

SSAP 26 Segment reporting

SSAP 28 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
SSAP 29 Intangible assets

SSAP 30 Business combinations

SSAP 31 Impairment of assets

SSAP 32 Consolidated financial statements and accounting for investments in
subsidiaries
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NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (Continued)

()

The effects of the adoption of the above accounting standards are summarised as follows:

(i)  The adoption of SSAP 14 (revised) “Leases” has no material impact on the reported financial
position or results of the Group except that comparative information in the operating lease
commitments disclosure in Note 31(b) has been restated to comply with the requirements of
this revised statement.

(i)  The adoption of SSAP 26 “Segment reporting” requires comprehensive disclosure of financial
information by segment (both business and geographical segments) of the Group. This change
in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively and the relevant disclosure has been
summarised in Note 4.

The adoption of SSAP 9 (revised), SSAP 28, SSAP 29, SSAP 30, SSAP 31 and SSAP 32 had no
material impact on the reported financial results of the Group.

In addition to the adoption of the above standards, the Group has adopted the consequential
changes made to SSAP 10 "Accounting for investments in associates”, SSAP 17 “Property, plant and
equipment” and SSAP 18 "Revenue”. Other than those disclosed in the respective notes to the
financial statements, the Group considers that the consequential changes made to the above SSAPs
do not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

Unless otherwise stated, the 2001 comparative figures presented herein have incorporated the
effect of adjustments, where applicable, resulting from the adoption of the new accounting standards
above.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the accounts of the Company and the
enterprises that it controls. This control is normally evidenced when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to benefit from its activities. The
results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are consclidated from or to their
effective dates of acquisition or disposal. The equity and net income attributable to minority
shareholders' interests are shown separately in the Group's balance sheet and income statement,
respectively.

Intragroup balances and fransactions and resulting unrealised profits are eliminated in full. Unrealised
losses resulting from intragroup transactions are eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered.
Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Turnover

(e)

®

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for goods returned and
trade discounts, but excludes intra-group transactions during the year.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the
Group and the Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
turnover and other revenue are recognised on the following bases:

()  Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been transferred to a customer.

(i)  Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
(i) Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis on the principal
outstanding and at the rate applicable.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is @ company in which the Company has controls. Control is normally evidenced when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to
benefit from its activities. In the financial statements of the Company, interests in subsidiaries are
carried at cost less provision for impairment in value where considered necessary by the directors.
The results of the subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable.
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NCOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(8

(h)

Associate

An associate is an enterprise over which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, and thereby has the ability to participate in its financial and operating policy decisions.

In the consolidated financial statements, interest in an associate is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting, whereby the investment is initially recorded at cost and the carrying amount
is adjusted to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the associate,
distributions received from the associate and other necessary alterations in the Group’s proportionate
interest in the associate arising from changes in the equity of the associate that have not been
included in the consolidated income statement. Where, in the opinion of the directors, there is an
impairment in value of an associate, or the market value has fallen below the carrying value over a
sustained period of time, a provision is made for such impairment in value.

The financial year end of the associate is 31st December, accordingly, the share of results of the
associate for the year ended 31st March, 2002 is arrived at based on the unaudited management
accounts as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2001,

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than construction-in-progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after the fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged to the income statement in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed
assets beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of the fixed asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis at annual rates estimated to write off the
depreciable amount of each asset over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates or useful
lives are as follows:

Leasehold land Over the terms of the leases

Buildings 2% or the terms of the leases, if shorter
Leasehold improvements 14.3% — 20%

Plant and machinery 20%

Furniture, fixtures, office and computer equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20% — 25%

Moulds 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives (or, where shorter,
the term of the lease) on the same basis as owned assets,

The useful lives of assets and depreciation method are reviewed periodically.

When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the
accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

0

(k)

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents plant and properties under construction and is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. This includes cost of construction, plant and equipment and other
direct costs plus borrowing costs which include interest charges and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to finance these projects during the construction period, to
the extent these are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until such time as the assets are completed and ready
for their intended use.

Borrowing costs

Interest is expensed as incurred, except for interest directly attributable to the construction of
leasehold land and buildings under development which is capitalised as part of the cost of that
leasehold land and buildings. Interest is capitalised at the weighted average cost of the related
borrowings up to the date of completion of the leasehold land and buildings. The capitalised interest
rate represents the weighted average cost of capital from raising the related borrowings externally
and is approximately 4% (2001: 8%).

Other borrowing costs, including amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings,
amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with arranging borrowings and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs are recognised as an expense in the year incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, calculated on the weighted
average basis, comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories,
arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

(m)

(n)

(0)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at their cost, after provision for bad and doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash represents cash on hand and deposits with banks which are repayable on demand.

Cash equivalents represent short-term, highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation.

Leases

() Finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident to
ownership of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.

The Group recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in the balance sheet at amounts
equal at the inception of the ledse to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. In calculating the present value of the minimum
lease payments the discount factor used is the interest rate implicit in the lease, when it can
be determined. Otherwise, the Group's incremental borrowing rate is used. Initial direct costs
incurred are included as part of the asset. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to
periods during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

A finance lease gives rise to depreciation expense for the asset as well as a finance cost for
each accounting period. The depreciation policy for leased assets is the same as that for
depreciable assets that are owned.

(i)  Operating leases
An operating lease is & lease other than a finance lease.
Leases of assets under which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained

by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability method in respect of timing differences between
profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in the financial statements to the
extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset will crystallise.

Foreign currency

0,

(i)

(iii)

Foreign currency transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain their books and records in the primary currencies
of their respective countries. Transactions in other currencies are translated into the local
currencies at exchange rates prevailing at the time of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies at the balance sheet date are re-translated at
exchange rates prevailing at that date. All exchange differences, other than those capitalised
as a component of borrowing costs, are recognised in the income statement in the period in
which they arise.

Foreign entities

The financial statements of foreign consclidated subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the year-end exchange rates with respect to the balance sheet, and the average
rate for the year with respect to the income statement. All resulting translation differences are
included in the translation reserve included in equity.

Exchange differences on transactions which hedge the Group’s net investment in a foreign
entity are charged or credited directly to the translation reserve in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign entity, the cumulative exchange rate differences that relate to the
foreign entity, are recognised as income or as expense in the same period in which the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign operations

Where the operations of a foreign company are integral to the operations of the Group, the
translation principles are applied as if the transactions of the foreign operation had been
those of the Group, i.e. foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate,
income and expense items are translated at the exchange rates in effect on the dates of the
transactions, and resulting exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M)

(s)

®

(u)

(v)

impairment of assets

Fixed assets, interests in an associate and subsidiaries are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's net selling
price and value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in
an arm'’s length transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful
life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-
generating unit.

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when the impairment losses
recognised for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The reversal is recorded in income.

Segments

Geographical segments: for management purposes the Group is organised on a world-wide basis
into four major operating businesses. The divisions are the basis upon which the Group reports its
primary segment information. Financial information on business and geographical segments is
presented in Note 4.

Intersegment transactions: segment revenue, segment expenses and segment performance include
transfers between business segments and between geographical segments. Such transfers are
accounted for on a cost plus markup basis mutually agreed by different divisions. Those transfers are
eliminated in consolidation.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Subsequent events

Post-year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the balance
sheet date or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate (adjusting events),
are reflected in the financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes when material.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

DEBT RESTRUCTURING

On 10th Novemnber, 2000, the Group entered into a legally binding Debt Restructuring Deed ("DRD") with
eighteen bankers of the Group (the “Bank Group”), excluding a banker in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), pursuant to which the Bank Group agreed to restructure the outstanding bank indebtedness of
the Group, major terms of which, as revised by subsequent amendments, were as follows:

(a)

(b)

the reinstatement of the banking facility for the Group's secured indebtedness of approximately
HK$7,773,000, which included all outstanding principal, unpaid interest, and other fees, costs and
charges in respect of a mortgage loan. The banking facility was reinstated on the terms and conditions
contained in the existing facility arrangements, except that no further drawdown under the existing
facility could be made.

the Croup's residual indebtedness of approximately HK$337,041,000 was dealt with in the following
manner:

®

(if)

(iii)

the execution of a debt compromise arrangement whereby the Bank Group nominated
approximately HK$53.4 million of its total debts for settlement. The Group earmarked
approximately HK$10.8 million from its internal cash resources for full and final settlement of
the compromised debts.

HK$116,873,344 as Zero Coupon Secured Convertible Bonds (“Zero CB"). The terms of the
Zero CB include (i) repayment of the principal amount outstanding on the 5th anniversary of
the date of issue; (ii) conversion rights at HK$0.20 per share, or at HK$0.15 per share in the
event of default, for fully paid ordinary shares of the Company (subject to further adjustment
as stipulated in the DRD); and (iii) a conversion period of 5 years from the date of issue.

HK$57,126,656 as Secured Convertible Bonds with a 4% Coupon ("4% CB"). The terms of
the 4% CB include (i) repayment of the principal amount outstanding together with all
interest outstanding on the 5th anniversary of the date of issue; (i) conversion rights at
HK$0.20 per share, or at HK$0.15 per share in the event of default, for fully paid ordinary
shares of the Company (subject to further adjustment as stipulated in the DRD); (iii) a
conversion period of 5 years from the date of issue; and (iv) an annual interest rate of 4%
payable in arrears every six months.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

3. DEBT RESTRUCTURING (Continued)

(iv) The balance of the residual indebtedness of approximately HK$109,641,000 was divided
among the banks in the Bank Croup on the basis of their residual indebtedness percentage as
a term loan over 5 years with interest at the 3-month Hong Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate plus
1% per annum. The principal is repayable commencing on 30th August, 2001, and for every
six months, HK$11,000,000 will be payable pro rata to each bank by reference to their
residual indebtedness percentage. At the end of the fifth year, the remaining balance of the
term loan will be repaid in full. The interest expense associated with the term loan is payable
on a quarterly basis.

The aforesaid convertible bonds and term loan are secured by (i) all existing guarantees and security
which remain in full force and effect; and (ii) the security provided pursuant to the terms of a
standstill and security sharing arrangement with the Bank Group on 7th December, 1999 which had
lapsed on 14th January, 2000. Further security would be provided by way of a charge over (i) the
banking facilities for working capital purposes to be granted to the Group; (ii) any deposit account
held by the security agent of the Bank Group; and (iii} any new facilities provided by any banks of
the Bank Group.

\/J The above mentioned debt restructuring plan was completed on 15th December, 2000. As a result
N of the debt restructuring as described in (b)(i) above, a gain on forgiveness of debt of approximately
HK$30,060,000, after deduction of the direct expenses, was recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31st March, 2001.

Pursuant to a Share Offer Agreement dated 15th December, 2000, the agent acting on behalf of the
Bank Group, by way of Share Sale, converted HK$86,873,344 Zero CB into shares at HK$0.20 per
share (Note 25). Based on the terms defined in the DRD, the qualifying shareholders of the
Company were able to acquire 434,366,720 ordinary shares from the Bank Group at HK$0.05 per
share.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Geographical segments

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from customers located in North America and PRC, while the
Group's business activities are conducted predominantly in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. An
analysis of the Group's external sales by location of customers is as follows:

The United States PRC Europe and others Total
2002 2001 2001 2002 2001 2001
HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKE'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
External sales 235,424 222,621 124,324 34788 34101 434749 404490
Cross profit 64,587 52,112 45965 9,894 9795 138068 114746

All the production facilities of the Croup are located in the Mainland China. Hence, no analysis of
the segment assets, liabilities and capital expenditure information by geographical locations is provided.

(b) No business segment information is provided as over 90% of the turnover and contribution to the
Group's results are attributable to the manufacturing and trading of household products.

TURNOVER AND QTHER REVENUE

An analysis of turnover and other revenue is follows:

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover 434,749 404,490
Sale of goods 434,749 404,490
Other revenue

Exchange gains, net - 358
Rental income under operating lease, net of outgoings 454 457
Interest income 1,671 3,538
Others 1,358 947
3,483 5,300

Total revenue 438,232

409,790




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

6. MAJOR CUSTOMER

During the year, the largest customer accounted for approximately 29% (2001: 29%) of the total sales of
the Group.

7. PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit from operating activities was determined after charging and crediting the following:

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Charging:
Auditors' remuneration 800 700
Depreciation:
Owned fixed assets 40,868 44,595
Leased fixed assets 3,284 3,378
44,152 47973
Operating lease rentals of land and buildings 5,858 6,088
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 57,264 57,826
Exchange losses, net 86 -
Loss on disposals of fixed assets 503 1,849
Provision for impairment in value of an associate - 843
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 1,940 -
Redundancy and severance payments 1,193 1,489
Crediting:
Exchange gains, net - 358
Write-back of provision for inventory obsolescence 6,593 166
Write-back of over-provision for depreciation - 5,452
Interest income on bank deposits 1,671 3,538
Rental income (less outgoings) 454 457
Write-back of provision for impairment in value of an associate 85 -
Write-back of provision for bad and doubtful debts - 1,043




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

FINANCE COSTS, NET

Group
2002 2001

HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest on:
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable within five years 7,676 26,173
Convertible bonds 2,291 645
Finance leases 689 1,098
Total finance costs 10,656 27916
Less: Interest capitalised in construction-in-progress (61) (1,747)

10,595 26,175

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange and Section

161 of the Hong Kong Companies. Ordinance are as follows:

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fees:
Non-executive directors 140 58
Independent non-executive directors 580 367
720 425
Other emoluments:
Executive directors:
Basic salaries, housing benefits,
other allowances and benefits in kind 2,280 1,734
Contributions to pension scheme 24 8
3,024 2,167

The emoluments of the directors analysed by the number of directors and emolument ranges are as

follows:
Group
Number of directors
2002 2001
Nil = HK$1,000,000 6 13
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 2 1
8 14

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five highest paid employees in the Group, two (2001: one) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in Note ¢ above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2001: four) highest
paid employees are as follows:

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Basic salaries, housing benefits, other allowances and benefits in kind 2,675 4,597
Contributions to pension scheme 31 11
2,706 4,608
Their emoluments are within the following bands:
Group
Number of employees
2002 2001
Nil — HK$1,000,000 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 2
3 4
TAXATION
Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong
Current year provision 235 -
Write-back of over-provision in prior year - 27)
The Mainland China
Current year provision 174 659
Under-provision in prior year - 470
Deferred tax (Note 24) 1,721 (1,000)
Tax expense for the year 2,130 102

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16% on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Overseas taxation has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The Group’s subsidiary registered in the Mainland China is exempted from income tax for two years starting
from the first profit-making year of operations after offsetting prior losses and is entitled to a 50% relief
from income tax for the following three years. During the year, the Mainland Chine income tax has been
provided at a reduced rate of 7.5% for the period from 1st April, 2001 to 31st December, 2001 and 15%
for the period from 1st January, 2002 to 31st March, 2002 on the estimated assessable profits generated
by the Mainland China subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

NET PROFIT FROW ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net profit from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company is approximately HK$98,000 (2001: HK$3,916,000).

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net profit from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders for the year of approximately HK$15,690,000 (2001: HK$5,681,000), divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year of 868,733,440 shares (2001: 508,149,560
shares) (Note 14).

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on adjusted consolidated net profit of approximately
HK$17,610,000 (2001: HK$6,243,000) on the assumption that all convertible bonds were converted on
st April, 2001 and on the weighted average number of 1,304,366,720 shares (2001: 635,855,755
shares) deemed to have been in issue during the year.

Reconciliation of the number of ordinary shares for calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is as
follows:

GCroup
2002 2001
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating basic earnings per share (Note 13) 868,733,440 508,149,560
Deemed issue of ordinary shares at no consideration 435,633,280 127,706,195
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating diluted earnings per share 1,304,366,720 635,855,755

X




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

15, FIXED ASSETS

(roup
2002 2001
Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold office and
lndand  leasehold  Plantand  computer Motor Construction-
buldings improvements  machinery  equipment  vehicles Moulds  in-progress Total Tote!
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 RK$000 Hk$'000 HK'000
Cost
Beginning of year 327047 20,193 89,766 34,621 14,947 134,141 3334 624,049 606,582
Additions 63 482 1,545 1401 49 13,333 5373 23,146 24341
Disposels (20) @ My s (605)  (13,195) - Qign) (6814)
Transfer from construction-in-progress 3318 1,189 3,800 400 - - (8,707} - -
End of year 331,108 21,643 94,392 287 14391 134279 - 625,584 624,049
\ f Accumulated depreciation
| Beginning of year 21,982 10,770 70,634 25,661 151 87,404 - 227962 189,260
Charge for the year 713 2716 7716 3,800 1763 21,04 A L B v37)
Disposéls (1) (50 68y (5788)  (576)  (10315) - (7ss9) (3819)
Reclassification (192) 192 - - - - - - -
End of year 28791 13,528 71732 23,673 12,698 98,133 - 254,555 227562
Net book value
End of year 302317 8,115 16,650 5,098 1,693 36,148 - 371,08 396,087
Beginning of year 305,065 9423 19,132 8,960 5436 46,737 3334 396,087 417322

The Group's leasehold land and buildings are analysed as follows:

Croup
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Under medium term leases:
Hong Kong 29,141 29,801
The Mainland China 273,176 275,264
302,317 305,065
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31st March, 2002

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All of the Group's fixed assets are pledged against secured bank loans and convertible bonds of approximately
HK$129.5 million (2001: HK$155.6 million) and HK$87.1 million (2001: HK$87.1 million) respectively.

The net book value of the fixed assets held under finance leases included in plant and machinery of the
Group at 31st March, 2002 amounted to HK$2,860,000 (2001: HK$6,825,000).

The Group’s construction-in-progress is all situated outside Hong Kong under medium term leases. As at
31st March, 2002, leasehold land and buildings included capitalised interest of approximately HK$61,000

(2001: HK$1,741,000).

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest capitalised 61 1,741
Average capitalisation rate 4% 8%
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 158,598 158,598
Due from subsidiaries 578,030 586,578
Due to subsidiaries (67,282) (53,270)
669,346 651,506
Less: Provision for'impairment in value (294,121) (293,834)
375,225 398,072

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed repayment terms.

The directors are of the opinion that the underlying value of the subsidiaries was not less than the carrying

amount of the subsidiaries as at 3 1st March, 2002.

Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 3ist March, 2002 are set out in Note 34 to the

financial statements.
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NCTES TOC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

INTEREST [N AN ASSOCIATE

Croup
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of net assets 1,426 1,047
Due from an associate 818 844
Provision for impairment in value (758) (843)
1,486 1,042

The amount due from the associate is unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed repayment terms.

The Group holds 40% of the issued share capital of Techable Industrial Limited, & company that is
incorporated in Hong Kong and is engaged in the manufacturing and trading of metal products in Hong
Kong.

The directors are of the opinion that the underlying value of the associate was not less than its carrying
amount as at 31st March, 2002.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade receivable 83,000 77,901
Bills receivable 5,111 4,025
88,111 81,926
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (11,077) (9,137)
77,034 72,789
An aging analysis of trade and bills receivable is set out below:
Croup
2002 2001 j‘
HK$'000 HK$'000 \’1
(Note 35) : -
Less than 1 month 35,924 32,161
1 month to 2 months 20,780 21,14
2 months to 3 months 12,075 9,852
3 months to 6 months 9,116 7,214 i }
6 months to 1 year 4,776 4,410 <
More than 1 year 5,440 7,148
88,111 81,926
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (11,077) (9,137)
77,034 72,788

Trade receivables are due after 30 days to 60 days.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

19. INVENTORIES

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials 21,502 24,448
Work in progress 12,880 12,308
Finished goods 36,539 37,143
70,921 73,900
Less: Provision for inventory obsolescence (18,285) (24,878)
52,636 49,022
20. BANK LOANS
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 35)
Bank loans:
Secured 350,042 116,467 87,641 109,641
The maturity of the above loans
is as follows:
Bank loans repayable
Within one year or on demand 24,401 26,395 22,000 22,000
More than one year but
not exceeding two years 22,000 24,431 22,000 22,000
More than two years but not
exceeding five years 43 641 65,641 43,641 65,641
Total within five years 90,042 116,467 87,641 109,641
Portion classified in current liabilities (24,401) (26,395) (22,000) (22,000)
Long-term portion 65,641 90,072 65,641 87,641

As at 31st March, 2002, the long-term bank loans were secured by pledges of the Group's fixed assets
(see Note 15).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of trade payables is set out below:

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Less than 3 months 25,665 18,218
3 months to 6 months 1,818 1,989
6 months to T year 1,245 224
More than 1 year 295 1,391
29,023 21,822
FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS
Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Total minimum lease payments under finance leases:
not later than one year 4,271 4,983
later than one year and not later than five years - 4116
Total minimum finance lease payments 4,271 9,099
Future finance charges (221) (885)
Total net finance lease obligations 4,050 8,214
Less: Amount due within one year included in current fiabilities (4,050) 4,311)
Long-term portion - 3,903
The present value of obligations under finance leases:
not later than one year 4,050 4,311
later than one year and not later than five years - 3,903
4,050 8,214
Less: Amount due within one year included in current liabilities (4,050) (4311)

3,903
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET ‘

As at 31st March, 2002, the net current assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$39,608,000
(2001: HK$25,917,000). On the same date, the total assets less current liabilities were approximately
HK$412,123,000 (2001: HK$423,046,000).

DEFERRED TAX

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of year 834 1,834
Provision for net timing differences (Note 11) 1,721 -
Reversal of net timing differerices (Note 11) - (1,000)
End of year 2,555 834

Deferred tax liabilities of the Croup represent the taxation effect of the timing differences arising from
accelerated depreciation allowances. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the potential
tax benefits relating to the tax losses.

As at 31st March, 2002, the Group and the Company had no other significant unprovided deferred tax.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Group and Company

2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Zero CB:
Beginning of year 30,000 -
Issued during the year ~ 116,873
Converted during the year ~ {86,873)
End of year 30,000 30,000
4% CB:
Beginning of year 57,127 -
issued during the year - 57,127
End of year 57,127 57,127
Total 87,127 87,127

Pursuant to the DRD, HK$116,873,344 Zero CB and HK$57,126,656 4% CB were issued by the Company.
The Zero CB and 4% CB were issued at their principal amounts and bear interest at 0% and 4% per
annum respectively. The Company may, at any time, redeem all or part of the Zero CB and/or 4% CB at
their principal amounts together with all interest outstanding before 15th December, 2005. The Zero CB
and 4% CB are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Company and the Group.

Subject to the rights of redemption by the Company, the Zero CB and 4% CB are convertible into fully paid
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company at the option of the holder at a conversion price of
HK$0.20 per share at any time on or before 15th December, 2005. The canversion price is subject to
adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events as defined in the agreement pertaining to the issuance
of the Zero CB and 4% CB.

Pursuant to the Share Sale in January 2001, 434,366,720 ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each of
the Company were issued upon the conversion of Zero CB with a principal value of approximately
HK$86,873,000 by certain bondholders at a conversion price of HK$0.20 per share (Note 3). As a result of
the Share Sale, the amounts of share capital and share premium increased by HK$43,436,672 each.

According to the DRD, the Group has to, amongst others, comply with the following financial covenants:

{a) The gearing ratio shouid not exceed 130% and 100% for the years ending 31st December, 2002
and 2003 respectively;

(b) The ratio of EBIT to interest expense should not be less than 1.5 for the years ending 31st
December, 2002 and 2003;

{¢)  The tangible net worth should not be less than HK$165,000,000 and HK$200,000,000 for the years
ending 31st December, 2002 and 2003 respectively.
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SHARE CAPRITAL

Group and Company

2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
4,000,000,000 (2001: 4,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid:
868,733,440 (2001: 868,733,440)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 86,873 86,873

SHARE QOPTION SCHEME

On 20th September, 1995, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the
shareholders of the Company, under which the directors of the Company may, at their discretion, invite any
full-time employee or executive director of the Company or its subsidiaries to take up options at HK$1
each to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. Each option is entitled to subscribe for one ordinary
share of the Company and the subscription price is determined by the Board of Directors at not less than
80% of the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
option or the nominal value of the shares, whichever is higher. Options are exercisable in stages as
determined by the Board of irectors from time to time at the date of grant.

As at the balance sheet date, the Company had no outstanding share options:

Date of grant of Number of share Subscription
share options options outstanding price per share Exercise period
At 31st March, At 31st March,
2002 2001
7th October, 1996 - 1,000,000 HK$1.68 7th October, 1996 -

6th October, 2001

During the year, all share options lapsed and no share options were exercised or granted.




28. RESERVES

Movements of reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

2002 2001
Capital
Share  redemption Translation  Contributed  Accumulated

Group premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Beginning of year 282,049 1,265 139 51 (132,103) 151,401 102,283
Share Sale (Note 3) - - - - - - 43,437
Net profit for the year - - - - 15,690 15,690 5,681
End of year 282,049 1,265 139 51 (116,413) 167,091 151,401

The Company and
subsidiaries 282,049 1,265 139 51 (117,474) 166,030 150,725
Associate - - - - 1,061 1,061 676
282,049 1,265 139 51 (116,413) 167,091 151,401
2002 2001

Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed  Accumulated

Company premium reserve sumlus losses Total Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of year 282,049 1,265 158,398 (292,076) 149,636 102,283
Share Sale (Note 3) - - - - - 43,437
Net profit for the year - - - 98 98 3,916
End of year 282,049 1,265 158,388 (291,978) 148,734 149,636
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31st March, 2002

28. RESERVES (Continued)

The laws and regulations of the Mainland China require wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the Mainland
China ("WFOE") to provide for certain statutory reserves namely general reserve, enterprise expansion fund
and staff welfare and bonus fund which are appropriated from net profit as reported in the statutory
accounts.

The Group's subsidiary in the Mainland China, which is a WFOE, is required to allocate at least 10% of its
after-tax profit to the general reserve until the reserve has reached 50% of its registered capital. The
general reserve can only be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital. The enterprise expansion fund can only be used to increase capital upon approval by the
relevant authority. The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used for the welfare of the employees of
the subsidiary in the Mainland China. Appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund and staff welfare and
bonus fund is at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the subsidiary in the Mainland China.

The Group's subsidiary in the Mainland China has not made any appropriations to the statutory reserves
because it has accumulated losses.

/ The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
\/‘ share capital of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by the Group and the nominal
value of the Company's shares issued as consideration for the acquisition es at the date of the Group

reorganisation in 1995.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution
out of the contributed surplus, if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium account.




31st March, 2002

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. NQTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(@)

(®)

Reconciliation of profit from operating activities to net cash inflow from operating

activities:
Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit from operating activities 28,030 2,302
Interest income (1,671 (3,538)
Write-back of provision for inventory obsolescence (6,593) (166)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 1,940 -
Write-back of provision for bad and doubtful debts - (1,043)
Write-back of provision for impairment in value of an associate (85) -
Provision for impairment in value of an associate - 843
Depreciation of fixed assets 44152 42,521
Loss on disposals of fixed assets 503 1,849
(Increase) Decrease in trade and bills receivable,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables (3,660) 11,040
Decrease in inventories 2,979 24,009
Decrease in amount due from an associate 26 118
Increase (Decrease) in trade payables,
other payables and accruals 6,269 (39,670)
Increase in long-term payable - 2,836
Net cash inflow from operating activities 71,890 41,101
Analysis of changes in financing during the year:
2002 2001
Share capital Finance
and share lease Convertible
premium  obligations  Bank loans bonds Total Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of year 368,922 8,214 175,631 87127 639,894 505,259
Reclassification of bank overdrafts and
import loans from cash equivalents - - -~ - - 153572
Accrued interest expense - - - - - 22,285
Gain on forgiveness of debt - - - - - (30,060)
Inception of finance lease contracts - - - - - 775
Exchange difference - - 343 - 343 -
Net cash outflow from financing - (4164)  (32,683) - (36,847)  (11,937)
End of year 368,922 4,050 143,291 87,127 603,390 639,894




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2002, the Company had given guarantees to banks in connection with facilities granted
to its subsidiaries.

31. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised and contracted for:
Purchases of land and buildings, and
plant and machinery 1,073 825
Authorised but not contracted for:
Purchases of plant and machinery - 1,761
1,073 2,586

The Company had no capital commitments at 31st March, 2002 (2001: Nil).

(b) Lease commitments .

As at 31st March, 2002, the total future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:

Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 35)

Properties

Not later than 1 year 3,789 3,793
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4,288 904
Later than 5 years 12 -
8,089 4,697
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

BANKING FACILITIES

Saved as the outstanding bank indebtedness disclosed in Note 3, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of approximately HK$81,800,000 (2001: HK$85,900,000) for overdrafts, import and export trade
financing and working capital as at 31st March, 2002. Unused facilities as at the same date amounted to
approximately HK$26,200,000 (2001: HK$19,800,000). These facilities were secured by the following:

(a) Corporate guarantees given by the Company together with its three wholly-owned subsidiaries in
favour of a bank for general banking facilities granted to the Group;

(b) Restricted bank deposits of approximately HK$42,140,000 (2001: HK$41,029,000) held by the
security agent of the Bank Group. The Group is restricted from using these bank deposits unless
prior approval is obtained from the Bank Group. The deposits earn interest at 1.3%-4.7% (2001:
4.9%-6.5%) per annum.

(¢)  Certain of the Group's leasehold land and buildings with a total net book value of approximately
HK$108,620,000 (2001: HK$111,059,000) are pledged against secured bank loans of approximately
HK$41.8 million (2001: HK$45.9 million).

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENTS

Since 1st December, 2000, the Group has arranged for its employees in Hong Kong to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme was introduced pursuant to the Mandatory
Provident Fund legistation introduced during that year. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and each of the
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer's and the employees’ contributions are
subject to a cap of monthly earnings of HK$20,000. For those employees with monthly earnings less than
HK$4,000, the employees’ contributions are voluntary.

During the vyear, the aggregate amount of employer's contribution made by the Group to the MPF Scheme
was approximately HK$8496,000 (2001: HK$182,000).




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2002 are as follows:

Name

Directly held:

Magician Investments (BVI) Limited

Treasure Trend Development Limited

Indirectly held:

Diyon Development Limited

Magicgrand Development Limited

Magician Industrial Company Limited

Jinda Plastic Metal Products

{Shenzhen) Co. ltd.

Mare Concept Limited

Nicole (China) Company Limited

Grandmate Industrial Company Limited

Hopeward Holdings Limited

Falton frvestment Limited

Place of incorporation/
registration '

British Virgin Islands

Biitish Virgin Islands

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong

People’s Republic of Ching

Hong Kang

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

Hang Kong

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Nominal value of issued

ordinary share/
registered capital

US36 ordinary

US$1 ordinary

HK$3 ordinary

US31 ordinary

HKSS ordinary

HK$180,000,000

registered capital

HK$3 ardinary

HK$2 ordinary

HK$251,000 ordinary

US$1 ordinary

HKS$2 ardinary

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

Investment holding

nvestment holding

Purchasing of paper, plastic
and metal materials
and products

Trading of plastic
and metal products

Marketing and trading
of plastic and metal
products

Manufacturing and
trading of plastic and
metal products

Marketing and trading
of plastic and
metal products

Marketing and trading
of plastic and

metal products
Marketing and trading
of plastic and

metal products

Property holding

Property halding

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in Hong Kong except for Magicgrand Development Limited
and Jinda Plastic Metal Products (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. which operate in the Mainland China.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31st March, 2002

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the 2001 comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation
and the new presentation and disclosure requirements under the new SSAPs.

The major reclassifications included the classification of short-term bank loans to current portion of long-
term bank loans in the consolidated balance sheet and the restatement of the comparative information in
the operating lease commitments disclosure to comply with the requirements of SSAP 14 (revised) “Leases”.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements set out on pages 33 to 67 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 24th June, 2002.




5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The consolidated results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the Group's published audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, are set out below:

Year ended 31st March,

2002 2001 2000 1999 19388
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TURNOVER
Continuing operations 434,749 404,490 494,525 608,634 574,179
Discontinued operations - - 87741 105,222 102,942
434,749 404,490 582,266 713,856 677,121
PROFIT (LOSS) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Continuing operations 17,435 6,187 (118,781) (259,042) 66,041
Discontinued operations - - 445 4,730 14,044
17,435 6,187 (118,336)  (254,312) 80,085
Share of results of an associate 385 (330) (230) (239) 55
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 17,820 5,857 (118,566)  (254,551) 80,140
Taxation (2,130) (102) (310) (1,045) (3,265)
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE
MINORITY INTERESTS 15,690 5,755 (118,876) (255,596) 76,875
Minority interests - (74) 340 (1,924) (6,792)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM
ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 15,690 5,681 (118,536) (257,520) 70,083
As at 31st March,
2002 2001 2000 19389 1998
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS 564,370 578,391 636,521 784,148 1,214,447
TOTAL LIABILITIES (310,406)  (340,117)  (490,875)  (519,935)  (620,5679)
MINORITY INTERESTS - - 74 48 (87,766)
253,964 238,274 145,720 264,261 506,002

NET ASSETS
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